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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members
KHFM Hospitality & Facility Management Services Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

Services Ltd (“the Company”), which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 313 March, 2019, and the Statement

of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 (“the act”) in the
manner so required and giveatrue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2019, and its profit ( including other

comprehensive income), its cash flows and the cha nges in equity for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provision
of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethic responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition — Fixed price development contr

acts

The Company inter alia engages in Fixed-price
development contracts, where, revenue is recognized
using the percentage of completion computed as per
the input method based on management’s estimate
of contract costs (Refer Note 2. Il (a) to the
standalone financial statements).

We identified revenue recognition of fixed price
development contract as a KAM considering —

e There is an inherent risk around the accuracy
of revenues given, the customized and

complex nature of these contract;

Application of revenue recognition accounting
standard is complex and involved a number of
key judgments and estimates including
estimating the future cost-to-completion of
these contract, which is used to determine the
percentage of completion of the relevant
performance obligation.

This contract may involve onerous obligation
on the company that require critical estimates
to be made by management; and

At year-end a significant amount of work in
progress (Contract assets and liabilities)
related to these contracts is recognized on the
balance sheet.

Our audit procedures on revenue recognized from
fixed price developments contract included

e Obtaining an understanding of the systems,
process and control implemented by
management for recording and calculating
revenue and the associated contract assets,

unearned and deferred revenue balances.

On selected samples of contracts, we tested
that the revenue recognized is in accordance
with the accounting standard by-

» Evaluating the identification of

performance obligation;

» Testing management’s calculation of
the estimation of contract cost and

onerous obligation, if any. We:

Observed that the estimates of cost to
complete were reviewed and approved
by appropriate levels of management;

Performed a retrospective review of
cost incurred with estimated costs to
identify significant variations and verify
whether those variations have been
considered in estimating the remaining
costs to complete the contract’

Y

Assessed the appropriateness of work
in progress (contract assets) on
balance sheet by evaluating the
underlying documentation to identify
possible delays in achieving milestones
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which may require change in estimated
costs to complete the remaining
performance obligation; and

Performed test of details including
analytics to determine reasonableness
of contract costs.

Adoption of Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contract with

Customers

As described in Note 2 Il (a) to the standalone financial
statements, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115,
Revenue from Contract with Customers (‘Ind AS 1157)
which is the new revenue accounting standard. The
application and transition to this accounting standard
is complex and is an area of focus in the audit.

The revenue standard established a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and
when revenue is recognized. This involves certain key

judgments relating to identification of distinct
performance  obligations, determination of
transaction price of identified performance

obligation, the appropriateness of the basis used to |

measure revenue recognized over a period.
Additionally, the standard mandated robust
disclosures in respect of revenue and periods over
which the remaining performance obligations will be
satisfied subsequent to the balance sheet date.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 and applied the
available exemption provided there in, to not restate
the comparative periods.

Qur audit procedures on adoption of Ind AS 115,
Revenue from contract with Customers (‘Ind AS 115),
which is the new revenue accounting standard,
include-

= FEvaluated the design and implementation of

the processes and internal control relating to
implementation of the new revenue
accounting standard;

Evaluated the detailed analysis performed by
management on revenue streams by selecting
samples for the existing contracts with
customers and considered revenue
recognition policy in the current period in
respect of those revenue streams

Evaluated the cumulative effect adjustments
as at 1 April 2018 for compliance with the new
revenue standard; and

Evaluated the appropriateness of the
disclosures provided under the new revenue
standard and assessed the completeness and
mathematical accuracy of the relevant
disclosures.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the

standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, of has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process,
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud of error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud of error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risks of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentation, of the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstance. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial control with reference

to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
Reg. off: B-15, Sai Prasad, Telly Gully Cross Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 069 /.;P/«‘;Kga?‘\;
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a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying

transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

éxpected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records
of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to

us, we give in the “Annexure A” 3 statement on the matters specified in the Paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.
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-__(A ) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accardance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements- Refer Note 33 to the standalone
financial statements.

ii The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including

derivative contracts- Refer Note 18 and 19 to the standalone financial statements.

iii There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Firm Regn. No. .
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Iv The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holding as well as dealings

in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
have not been made in these standalone financial statements since they do not pertain to

the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration
Paid by the company to this director during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other

details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Bhushan Khot & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration N0.116888W)
Bhushan Khot

o\
\ o P
(Partner)

Membership No. 101858
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30" May 2019
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure A reference to in the Independent Auditor’'s Report to the member of the
Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 315 March 2019, we report the following:

1.

(a) The Company has maintained proper record showing full, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular Programme of physical verification of its fixed assets., by which all fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its asserts.
Pursuant to the Programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the
name of the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion. The
frequency of such verification is reasonable. The Company has maintained proper record of inventory.
The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stock and the book record were not
material.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to company, Firm, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered int the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) (b) and
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loan given, investments made,
guarantees and securities given.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act. Any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the relevant rules reamed thereunder.

The Central Governments has not prescribed the maintained of cost records under Section 148 of the
Act for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amount deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident fund, Employee State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service tax,
duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during
the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
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According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of
Provident fund, Employee State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service tax, duty of Customs, Cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019, for a period of more than Six months
from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income-tax or Sales
tax or Service tax or Goods and service tax or duty of Customs of duty of excise or value added tax which
have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes, excepts for the following:

Name of the Nature of the Amount ( in Period Frum where
Statute Dues Lakh) dispute is pending
The Financial Act, | Service tax 625.79 2007-2008, to 2014-15 | The Principle
1994 Commissioner GST
and Central Excise
Mumbai — East

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayments of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company did not have any outstanding
loans or borrowing from financial institution or governments and there are no dues to debenture holders
during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company did not raise
any money by way of initial pubic offer or further public offer and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us and based on
examination of the record of the Company, the Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Scheduled V tot the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable, and details of such transaction have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
of fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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“ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1 A(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements “ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of KHFM
Hospitality & Facility Management Services Ltd (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019, in conjunction with our

audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
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whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal

financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due

to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial

G
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controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial

control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India.

For Bhushan Khot & Co.

Chartered Accountants _ NKROS :
FRN 116888 W o 5
\n - ~ MUMBAI \¢
// Firm Regn. No. | -
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CA Bhushan Khot~ % Y

s>
Partner

Mem. No. 101858
Place: Mumbai
Date : 30'" May 2019
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M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN - U74930MH2006FPLC159290)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2019

I R
Particulars Note No. | As at 31st March, | As at 31st March, |As at 1st April,
2019 2018 2017
A |ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,94,54221 2,12,41,079 2,1758173
(b) Capital Work in Progress . - -
{c) intangible Assets A -
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development 3 42,000 = -
() Financial Assets
(i} Investments 4 5,00,000 5,00,000 5.00,000
{ii) Loans
(i) Other Financial Assets 5 3,7892 697 36805750 33799207
(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) & 8,18.261 - -
(e) Other Non-Current Assets - - -
5,87,07,178 5,85,46,829 5,60,57,380 |
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 3,29,001 441,754 2568772
(b} Financial Assets
(I} Investments
(i) Trade Recewvables B 40,10,98,665 29,99.27,575 26,89.60,427
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents ] 4,17 86421 2,56,51,247 1,59,12,810
(iii) Bank Balances other than (i) above - -
(iv) Other Financial Assets - - -
(€) Current Tax Assets (Net) 10 866,235 11,21,105 304,870
(d) Other Current Assets 11 7.71,45015 12,13,99.226 53112035
52,12,25,338 44,85,40,907 34,08,58,914
Total Assets 57,99,32,516 50,70,87,737 39,69,16,294
" B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 6,75,00,000 6,75,00,000 67,50,000
(b) Other Equity 13 14,32,38,184 11,62,83,262 15,48,30.201
21,07,38,184 18,37,83 262 16,15,.80.201
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 4| 7.91,43,484 12,05,83,653 8,40,00,877
(b} Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 6 - 923424 10,09,973
(e} Provisions . - -
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 15 345631 1045115 -
7.94,89,115 12,25,52,192 8,50,10,850
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Current Borrowings 16 17,09,06,407 14,5897 501 13,90,38,196
(i) Trade Payables 17 2.43,66,435 1,64,92,970 50,13,254
(b) Other Current Liabilities 18 7,80,31,156 3.42,53,542 62,73,793
(c) Provisions 19 164,001,219 1,08,270 -
28,97,05,217 | 20,07,52,283 15,03,25,243
Total Equity and Liabilities 57,99,32,516 | 50,70,87,737 39,69,16,294
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-33

As per our Attached report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of

For BHUSHAN KHOT & CO KHFM HOSPITA
Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 116888 W)

Ravindra ullﬂ:a:-gda

Bhushan Khot Director
Partner DIN No. - 01821002
M. No. 101858 /
al 5N
NavVeen Carvallo .
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer

Date: 30th May 2019

& FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

Sepf

Suajata Ravindra Hegde
Director
DIN No. - 01829352

f
Anub| rivastava
Company Secretary




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

(CIN - U74930MH2006PLC159290)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019

As per our Attached report of even date

For BHUSHAN KHOT & CO
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 116888 W)

Particulars Note | For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
| |Revenue from Operations 20 78,00.11,978 45,68,35 461
Il |Other Income 21 20,49,075 9,45047
Il |Total Income (I1+11) 78,20,61,053 45,77,80,508
IV |EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 22 4,76,67,676 34723538
Employee Benefits Expense 23 46,41,62911 321777375
9 Finance Cost 24 4,97,08,898 3,69,53,192
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 31,79,641 24,21,600
Cther Expenses * 25 18,08,02,223 3.06,15,552
Total Expenses (IV) 74,55,21,349 42,64,91,257
V |Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (lll- IV) 3,65,39.704 3,12,89,251
VI |Exceptional ltems - 4,25,405
Vil | Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V-V) 3,65,39.704 3.08.63,846
Vill | Tax Expense: 26
(1) Current Tax 1,01,97,007 85,24,236
(2) Reversal of Provision of Income Tax 11,29,460 50,000
(3) Deferred Tax (17,41,685) 86,549
Total Tax Expense 95,684,782 86,60,785
IX | Profit (Loss) for the period (VH-VIII) 2,69,54,922 2,22,03,061
X |Other Comprehensive Income
(1) Items that will notbe reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss
Re-measurement (Gain)/Loss on Defined Benefit Plan -
(2) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss - =
Xl |Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) 2,69,54,922 2,22,03,061
XNl |Earnings per Equity Share 21
(1) Basic 399 32,89 | **
12) Diluted 399 329 | *
* Other Expenses include allowances for Bad & Doubtful Debts
** After Considering allotment of Bonus Equity Shares ( Refer Note 22)
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-33

For and on behalf of Board of
KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
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Bhushan Khot S Ravindra Malinga Hegde  Suajata Ravindra Hegde
Partner 'OQ;? \3\(\? : Director Director
M. No. 101858 €D accO DIN No. - 01821002 DIN No. - 01829352
Place: Mumbai &ﬂa ...---—l .
Date: 30th May 2019 Naveen Carvallo Anub rivastava

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

(CIN - U74930MH2006PLC159290)

mH FLOW STATEMENT

All Amount in INR_
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2019 2018
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2.65,39.704 3,08.63.846
| Adjustment for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 31.79.641 24,211,600
Interest Expenses 3,7997.124 292,229,988
Bank charges .Commission & Processina Fees 11711774 77.23.204
Interest paid on Security Depasit - -
Allowance for Doubtful Debts 8185687
Balances Written Back - -
Reversal of Allowance for Doubtiul Debts -
Mark-to-Market (Gaini/Loss on investments = .
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - -
Interest Income an Secunty Deposit - -
|Interest Income on Fixed Deposit and Income Tax Refund (10,84,174) (5.70.047)
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 9,65.29,756 6,96,68,591
Adjustment for:
(Increase/decrease in Trade Recaivables (109356771 (3,09.67,148)
(Increased/decrease in Other Current Financial Assets - B
(Increasel/decrease in Non-Current Loans 2 =
(Increasel/decrease in Other Non-Current Financial Assets (10,86.947) (30.06,543)
(Increasel/decrease in Other Current Assets 44254211 (6,62.87.191)
- |(Increase)/decrease in Non-Current Assets - .
(Increasel/decrease in Inventories 1,12.753 21,27.018
Increase/(decrease) in Trade-Pavable 78.73.465 1.14,79,716
Increase/(decrease) in Other Current Financial Liability 2.10,08,906 1.08,59.305
Increase/|decrease) in Non Current Financial Liability (6.99.484) -
Increase/{decrease) in Provision 15112334 1.08.270
Increase/(decrease) in Other Non-Current Financial Liability [3.98.03,454) 37711977
Increase/(decrease) in Current Liabilitty 43777614 2.79,79,749
Increase/(decrease) in Non-Current Liabilitty I
Cash Generated from Operations | 1.77.22,377 5.76.73.743
Direct Taxes Paid | [1,01,45852) [86,70,915)
Net Cash from Operatina Activities (A) | 6.75.76.525 4,90.02.828
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property. Plant & Eguipment [14.34,783) [19,04.505)
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment -
Fixed Depasits matured/realised 74.28.037 | 5.00.000
Fixed Deposits placed 11,86,17.356) | [11.27.766)
it in Mutual Funds 5.77.800 | =
Interest Received 10.84,174 | 5.70.047
Net Cash used in Investina Activities (B) (1,09.62,128) | (19.62,224)
C |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
|Interest Expenses 13,96.33.839) (3.03.59,189)
Bank charges .Commission & Processing Fees {1.17.11,774) (77.23.204)
Dividend Paid = =
Tax on Dividend - -
Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) 15.13.45,613} {3,80,62,393)
Net Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 52,68,784 89,58,.211
Upenina Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 14597013 56,38,802 |
L IClosi | h h ivalern 1.98,65.797 14597013 |

Notes:-

1 The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) Cash Flow statement prescribed in the The
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Cash flow statement presents cash flows by operating. investing and financing activities.

2 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the year end comprises

As per our Attached report of even date

For BHUSHAN KHOT & CO

46,78,223 5914,082
1.51.87,575 8682931
1,98,65,797 1,45,97,013

For and on behalf of Board of

Chartered Accountants & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
(FRN: 116888 W) 4/ M
Bhushan Khot Ravindra Malinga Hegde  Suajata Ravindra Hegde
Partner Director Director
M. No. 101858 DIN No - 01821002 DIN No. - V1829352
aéa-rrn /f é’ ’
Place: Mumbai /
Date: 30th May 2019 Naveen Carvalle Y Anubl rivastava

CFO Company Secretary




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

(CIN - U74930MH2006PLC159290)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A Equity Share Capital

Balance as at 31st March, 2016

67,50,000

{Changes in equity share capital during 2016-17 -
Balance as at 31st March, 2017 67,50,000
Changes in equity share capital during 2017-18 6,07,50,000
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 6,75,00,000
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-19 -
|Balance as at 31st March, 2019 6,75,00,000

{Balance as at 1 st arch. 2017

1,31,25,000

14,17,05,201 15.48,30,201
|Profit/(Loss) for the period - 2,22,03,061 2,22,03,061
{Other Comprehensive income - = z
ITotaI Comprehensive Income for the year - 2,22,03,061 2,22,03,061
Transaction with owners, recorded directly in Equity
|Centribution by and Distributions to Owners 1,31,25,000 4,76,25,000 6,07,50,000

| Dividend (including tax)( Refer Note-17)
|Balance as at 31st March, 2018

Profit /(Loss) for the period

|Other Comprehensive income (Net of Tax)

11,62,83,262

11,62,83,262

|Total Comprehensive income for the Year

{Transaction with owners, recorded directly in Equity
[Contribution by and Distributions to Owners
Dividend (including tax)( Refer Note-17)

|Balance as at 31st March 2019

As per our Attached report of even date

For BHUSHAN KHOT & CO
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 115888 W)

v
Bhushan Khot

Partner
. No. 101858

Piace: Mumbai
Date: 30th May 2019

KHFM HOSPITALITY &: FACILI ;

For and on behalf of Board of

2,69,54,922 2,69,54,522

2,69,54,922 2,69,54,922

14,32,38,184 14,32,38,184
NAGEMENT SERVICES LIM|TED

Ravimira Mallnga Hegde
Director

DIN No. - 01321002

@,m/

Carvalio

Chief Financial Officer

i

Suajata Ravindra Hegde

Director
DIN No. - 01829352

Anubl hrivastava
Company Secretary




KHEM HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
CIN - U74930MH2006PLC159290

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company

KHFM HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED ( the Company) was originally
incorporated as KALPATARU'S HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with Certificate of Incorporation dated January 27, 2006 issued by the Registrar
of Companies, Mumbai Maharashtra (CIN U74930MH2006PTC159290).

Pursuant to having passed necessary resclution in terms of Section 21 of the Companies Act, 1956 and the approval
of the Central Government signified in writing having been accorded thereto under Section 21 of the Companies Act,
1956 read with Government of India, Department of Company Affairs, New Delhi, Notification No. GSR 507( E ) dated
24/06/1985 vide SRN B45036902 dated 10/08/2012 the name of the said company was changed to KHFM
HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED, wef August 10, 2012.

Further, pursuant to Special Resolution passed by the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
May 18, 2018, the company was converted from "KHFM HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED” to “KHFM HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED" vide a fresh
Certificate of Incorporation dated May 30", 2018 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, The
Corporate Identification Number of our Company is U74930MH2006PLC159290.

Nature of Operations

The Company is engaged in the business activities of Facility Management ( including House Keeping and Pest
Control), Hospitality Management & Catering, Horticulture and Gardening and Security Services and such other

related activities.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. BASIS OF PREPARTION and PRESENTATION:
The Separate financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013("Act’) (to the extent notified) read with the Rules 3 of the
Companies (Indian accounting standard) Rules 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016. The financial statements are prepared on going concern, accrual and historical cost basis except for the
following assets and liabilities and items of Statement of Profit and Loss which have been measured at fair value:

1. Defined Benefit Plans — Plan Assets

2. Equity Settled Share Based Payments and




3. Certain Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.
The company has adopted Ind AS and the adoptions were carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards with transition date of 1% April, 2017,
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy thereto in use.
The financial statements are presented in INR which is also the Company's functional currency and all values are
rounded to the nearest rupees (INR), except when otherwise indicated.
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved for issue in accordance
with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 30th of May, 2019.
The company does not have any investment in subsidiary and also requirement to prepare consolidated financial

statements under Ind AS 110 is not applicable to the Company.

Ind AS 101.6 states that "An entity shall prepare and present an opening Ind AS Balance Sheet at the date of transition
to Ind AS." Further, Ind AS 101.21 states that "An entity’s first Ind AS financial statements shall include at least three
Balance Sheets, two Statements of profit and loss, two Statements of cash flows and two Statements of changes in

equity and related notes, including comparative

Subsequent to the first Ind AS financial statements, Ind AS 1.40A requires an entity to present a third balance sheet as

at the beginning of the preceding period if:

(@) It applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial

statements or reclassifies items in its financial statements; and

The retrospective application, retrospective restatement or the reclassification has a material effect on the information

in the third balance sheet.

Il. USE OF ESTIMATION:
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities, and all assets and liabilities which are not current (as discussed in the below
paragraphs) are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realized within twelve months after the
reporting period, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.
A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the
purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no unconditional

right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

* | Firm Regn. No,
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) REVENUE RECOGNITION:
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government i.e. it is net of indirect taxes in its Profit & Loss
Account. Costs and earnings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue while billings in excess of costs and

earnings are classified as unearned revenue,

i) Interest:-
» Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable. The Rate applicable is defined as determined on the basis of Fair Rate of Return in accordance with IND

AS.

ii) Dividend:-

Revenue is recagnized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the Balance Sheet date.

iii) Rent Income:-

Rent Income is recognized on the basis of agreed periodic amount decided through agreement.

iv) Profit on sale of investment:-

It is recognized on its liquidation/redemption.

IV. TRANSACTION AND BALANCES
The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the Company's functional currency.
Transactions and Balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the spat exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies (except financial instruments
designated as Hedge Instruments) are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting
date.
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items

measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item

Regn, No,
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(i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCl or profit or loss are also

recognized in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

V. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an
orderly transaction between market participants. The Company's accounting policies require, measurement of certain
financial / non-financial assets and liabilities at fair values (either on a recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair
values of financial instruments measured at amortized cost are required to be disclosed in the said financial
statements.
The Company is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and liabilities,
either measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which
reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement). Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncobservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level 2. Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable

The Company has recognized reimbursement of Interest as well as issue expenses at the time of calculation of

Fair Rate of Return and consequent adjustments is furnished in the accompanying Financial Statements,

VI. TAXES
CURRENT INCOME TAX

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 19671 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the company
operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriate.
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DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial statements. However, deferred tax are not recognized if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.
The unrecognized deferred tax assets / carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date for
recoverability and adjusted appropriately.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
For operations carried out in tax free units, deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been recognized for the tax
consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
i) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
i) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority

on the same taxable entity.

MINIMUM ALTERNATE TAX (MAT)
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment of future tax liability, is recognized as an asset only when, based on convincing evidence, it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company and the assets can be measured

reliably.

VIl. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
The Company classifies non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, if its carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Such asset should be available for sale and
plan to dispose it off should be initiated by the management. The assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
separately from other asset in the balance sheet and such asset are valued at carrying amount or net realizable value

whichever is lower,

* | Firm Regn. No.
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VIII.PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount & rebated less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment which are significant to the total cost of that item of Property, Plant and Equipment
and having different useful life are accounted separately.

Other Indirect Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior
to its intended use, are considered as per — operative expenses and dislosed under Capital Work — in — Prigress.
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis on the Written Down Value method
based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 only.

The Details of useful life of an assets and its residual value estimated by the management are as follows :

Type of Assets Useful life as per Schedule II
Office Premises 60 Years

Equipments ( Plant & Machineries) 15 Years

Vehicles - Three & Four Wheelers 8 Years

Office Equipments 15 Years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years

Computers ( Servers & Networks) 6 Years

In none of the case the residual value of an assets is more than five percent of the Original Cost of the assets.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Staement of Profit

and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

IX. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and other non-financial assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely

independent of those from other assets.

| |
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In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. If
such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is
measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the
asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable
amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of

any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

X. BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset, All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange

differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

XI. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS & CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remcte, Contingent liabilities are not
recognized but are disclosed in notes.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Xil. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefit expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered

by employees are recognized as an expense during when the employees render the services.




Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction n future payment or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with the company at the time
of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity fund has been approved by respective Income Tax authorities.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post —employment benefits is calculated using the Prijected Unit Credit

Method and spraed over the period during which

XII.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS
INITIAL RECOGNITION
Financial assets are recagnized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
On initial recognition, a financial assets is recognized at fair value, except for trade receivables which are initially
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets.
SUBSEQUENT RECOGNITION
(i) Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
When the financial asset is derecognized or impaired, the gain or loss is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.
(i) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses

which are recognized in profit and loss.




When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit and loss.

Equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value. On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in
OClI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis. Fair value
gains and losses recognized in OCl are not reclassified to profit and loss.

(iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued through profit or
loss. Interest (basis EIR method) income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss within finance income/ finance costs separately from the other gains/ losses arising from

changes in the fair value.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
INITIAL RECOGNITION
Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless a initial recognition, they are
classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially recognized at fair value and

subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

SUBSEQUENT RECOGNITION

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

DERECOGNITION

A Financial liability dercognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss, otherwise lifetime ECL is used.

However, only in case of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach which requires expected

lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.
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DERECOGNITION

(a) FINANCIAL ASSETS

Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either

all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

(b) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire,

RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing
those assets. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses)
or interest.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net

basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

XIV.CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, short-term deposits and other
short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.
For the purposes of the presentation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in
banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand, book

overdraft as they being considered as integral part of the Company's cash management system.

XV. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,

investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

XVI.EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit for the period attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting, the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares considered for deriving Basic EPS, for the effects of all the shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential shares. The dilutive potential shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value. Further, the dilutive potential shares are deemed

converted as at beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date during the period.

XVIl. SEGMENT REPORTING
In accordance with Ind AS 108 on Operating Segments , the Company has identified its business segment as
Hospitality & Facility Management Services”. There are no other primary reporatable segments. The major and
material activities of the company are restricted to only one geographical segment ie. India, hence the secondary

segment disclosures are also not applicable.

XVIIl. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified the following new and
amendments to Ind AS which the Group has not applied as they are effective from April 1, 2019:
Ind AS 116 - Leases
Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single,
on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard also
contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in Ind AS 17.
The Company will adopt Ind AS 116 effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019. The Company will
apply the standard to its leases, retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard,
recognised on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, the Company will not restate comparative
information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard will be recognised as an adjustment to

the opening balance of retained earnings as on April 1, 2019. On that date, the Company will recognise a lease




liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments. The right-of-use asset is recognised at its
carrying amount as if the Standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019, In accordance with the standard, the company will elect not to
apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.
On transition, the Company will be using the practical expedient provided by the standard and therefore, will not
reassess whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial application. The Company is in the process of
finalising changes to systems and processes to meet the accounting and the reporting requirements of the standard
in conjunction with review of lease agreements.

The Company will recognise with effect from April 1, 2019 new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of
premises and other assets. The nature of expenses related to those leases will change from lease rent in previous
periods to

(a) amortisation charge for the right-to-use asset, and (b) interest accrued on lease liability

Previously, the Company recognised operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, and
recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing difference between actual lease payments
and the expense recognised.

As a lessor, sublease shall be classified as an operating lease if the head lease is classified as a short term lease. In all

other cases, the sublease shall be classified as a finance lease.

Ind AS 12 - Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over
income tax treatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity
originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Group does not expect any impact from this
pronouncement. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the entity pays a tax on
dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such
amount paid or payable to taxation authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend, in accordance
with Ind AS 12.

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the entity has to use judgement, to determine
whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together. The
decision should be based on the approach which provides better predictions of the resclution of the uncertainty (2)
the entity is to assume that the taxation authority will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining
any amount (3) entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment

and the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would
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depend upon the probability. The Group does not expect any significant impact of the amendment on its financial
statements.

Ind AS 109 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow
measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive
income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The Group does not expect this amendment to have

any impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current
service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used
for the re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The Group does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The Group does not expect any impact from this amendment.

Ind AS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, to long-term interests in an associate
or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method
is not applied. The Company does not currently have any long-term interests in associates and joint ventures.

Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations and Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements

The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business
that is a joint operation, it re-measures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to Ind AS 111
clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure
previously held interests in that business. The Group will apply the pronouncement if and when it obtains control /

joint control of a business that is a joint operation.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the

acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-




related costs are generally Recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are Recognised at their fair

value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
Recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date

and

s Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance

with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognizing a gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether
there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain
purchase. Thereafter, the Group reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assurmed and recognizes any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that
reassessment. The Group then reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for
the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. If the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the
Group recognizes it in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve.
This gain is attributed to the acquirer. If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Group recognizes the gain, after reassessing

and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the Recognised amounts of the acquiree’ s identifiable net

assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-




controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another Ind AS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case
maybe, Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period' (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being Recognised

in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is Recognised in profit or
loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
Recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be

appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting peried in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period(see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are Recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that

existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date.
XIX.DIVIDEND AND INTEREST INCOME

Dividend income from investments is Recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is Recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's
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net carrying amount on initial recognition.
XX. INVENTORIES

Items of inventories are measured in at lower cost & net realiasable value after providing for obsolescence, if
any except in case of by-products which are valued at net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises of
cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads net of recoverable

taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.

Cost of raw materials, chemicals, stores and spares, packing material, trading and other products are

determined on weighted average basis,
XXL INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in
equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value Recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative

gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments,
A financial asset is held for trading if

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or on initial recognition it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument or a financial guarantee.

XXIl. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial
recognition of Investment at Co-op Banks which are unlisted to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading and as the Fair Value

of the Same is not available, the same is recorded at Cost.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOC! criteria (see above) are measured at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are

designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be

S
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designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the

gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on Remeasurement Recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss Recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item.
Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is Recognised when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cast of the investment and the amount of dividend can be

measured reliably.

XX AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30th

May, 2019,

The management and authorities have the power to amend the Financial Statements in accordance with Section
130 and 131 of The Companies Act, 2013.




WXV, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS _
The significant accounting policies, including the criteria of recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on

which income and expenses are Recognised, in respect of each class, financial liability and equity instruments to the
financial statements
Financial Assets and Liabilities

(a)The Carrying values of Financial Assets and Liabilities have been given under:

31st March 2019 Fair value | Fair value Amortised cost Total
through through Other
Profitand | Comprehensive

Lass Income

Fi 2l Azt :
Mon-Current Assets:-

Investments - - - -

Investment in Equity instruments - 5,00,000 — 5,00,000

Investment in Preference Shares - - - =

Loan and Advances - = = .

i

Other Non-Current Financial Assets B - 3,78,92,697 3,78,92,697
Current Assets:-

Investments - - - -

Trade receivables - - 40,10,98,665 40,10,98,665

QOther Financials Assets - - - |
|

Financial Liability : [

| Non-Current :- |

L

| Borrowings 5 - 7,91,43,484 7,91,43,484

| Other financial liabilities | - ¥

L
! Current :-
|

| Borrowings - - 17,09,06,407 17,09,06,407

| Trade payables = = 2,43,66,435 2,43,66,435

| Other financial liabilities

- — - _I__




31st March 2018 Fair value | Fair value Amortised cost | Total
through through Other
Profitand | Comprehensive |

Loss Income

Ei ial A -
Non-Current Assets:-

Investments & = = =

investment in Equity instruments - 5,00,000 - 5,00,000

Investment in Preference Shares - - - -

Loan and Advances | = = N 2

Othar Non-Current Financial Assets | - - 3,68,05,750 3,68,05,750

Current Assets:-

Investments - - - -

Trade receivables - - 29,99,27,575 29,88,27,575

Other Financials Assets - - -

Financial Liability :

Non-Current :-

Borrowings - - 12,05,83,653 12,05,83,653

Other financial liabilities - e = 5

Current :-

. ; " 14,98,37,501 14,98,97,501
. -' : 1,64,92,970 1,64,92,970

| Borrowings

| Trade payables

| Other financial liabilities




1 April 2017

Fair value
through
Profit and

Loss

Fair value
through Other
Comprehensive

Income

Amortised cost

Total

Fi i et :

Mon-Current Assets:-

Investments

Investment in Equity instruments

5,00,000

5,00,000

Investment in Preference Shares

Loan and Advances

Other Non-Current Financial Assets

3,37,99,207

3,37,99,207

Current Assets:-

Investments

Trade receivables

26,89,60,427

26,89,60,427

Other Financials Assets

Financial Liability :

Non-Current :-

Borrowings

8,40,00,877

840,00877 |

[ Cther financia! liabilities

| Current :-
L

| Borrowings

13,90,38,196

13,90,38,196

E Trade payablas

50,13.254

50,13.254

Carrying amount of Investment, Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalent, Bank balances, Other financial Assets,
Trade payables and Other financial liabilities as at 31st March, 2019, 31st March, 2018 and 1st April, 2017 approximate
the Fair Value because of their short term nature. Difference between carrying amount and fair values of bank

deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortized cost is

not significant each of vear presented.




B) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either
observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels :

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs are not based on observable market data (Unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole
or in part using a valuation model based on assumption that are neither supported by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. The Company has fair valued
the transaction of financial guarantee (under Other Financial Liabilities) on the basis of internal comparable of a
similar transaction with an unrelated party. The fair value so determined will therefore be classified under Level 2. The
investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using the cost approach to arrive at their fair
value.

The cost of unquoted investments approximate the fair value because there is a wide range of possible fair valued
measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair valued within that range.

C) Financial risk management

i) Risk management framework

a) The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The Board of Directors has established the risk management committee, which is
responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management policies. The Company reports regularly to the
Board of Directors on its activities.

b) The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's activities. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which the employees understand their roles and obligations,

¢) The Audit Committee overseas how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by
the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both
reqular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the

Audit Committee.
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ii) The Company has exposure to the following risks from the financial instruments:

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables frem customers, investments
in debt securities, loans given to related parties and project deposits. The carrying amount of financial assets
represents the maximum credit exposure.

» Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of
ownership, therefore substantially eliminating the Company's Credit risk in this respect. The Company's credit risk with
regard to trade receivables has a high degree of risk diversification, due to the large number of projects of vary in
sizes and types with numerous different customer categories in a large number of geographical markets. Based on
prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes there is no credit
risk provision required. Also the Company does not have any significant concentration of credit risk.

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 01st April, 2017

Trade Receivables

(Unsecured)

Over six months 17,20,70,103 4,74,56,791 3,11,50,960
Less than six months 23,72,14,249 25,24,70,783 23,78,09,468

The amounts reflected in the table above are not impaired as on the reporting date.

a) Cash and Bank Balances

Credit risk from cash and bank balances is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the
Company's policy.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the cbligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows. This
monitoring includes financial ratios and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

« Exposure to Liquidity risk.




The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated

interest payments as at 31st March, 2019

Particulars Due within 12 Due within 1 to 3 | More than 3

months years years

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings | 17,09,06,407 4,29,88,254 3,61,55,230
Trade payables | 2,4366,435

Other financial liabilities |

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated

interest payments as at 31st March, 2018

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14,98,97,501 8,07,59,965 3,98,23,688
Trade payables 1,64,92,970

Other financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated

interest payments as at 1st April, 2017

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 13,90,38,196 3,69,59,652 47041225
Trade payables 50,13,254

Other financial liabilities

c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rate and interest rates will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The objective of market risk management isto
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

« Currency risk

Currency risk is not material, as the Company's primary business activities are within India and does not have
significant exposure in foreign currency.

« Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The management is responsible for the monitoring of the Company’s interest rate
position. Various Variables are considered by the management in structuring the Company's borrowings to achieve a

reasonable, competitive, cost of funding.
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Exposure to interest rate risk.

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments as reported to the management is as

follows:

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31st March, 2018 | 1st April, 2017

Financial Assets

Fixed rate instruments
Bank Deposits

- Current 1,51,87,575- 86,82,931 39,32,257
- Non Current 2.19,20,624- 97,51,838 89,26,612

Financial Liabilities

Fixed rate instruments

Borrowing = - -

Variable rate instruments

Borrowing
- From Schedule Bank 22,39,92,264 16,94,32,690 15,44,94,845
- From Financial institutions 2,60,57,627 10,10,48,464 £,85,44,228

XXIX. Capital Management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company's capital management.

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns
to shareholders.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgment of its strategic and day-to-day needs with
a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence.

First-time adoption of Ind-AS

The transition as at April 1, 2017 to Ind As was carried out from Previcus GAAP. The exemptions and exceptions
applied by the Company in accordance with Ind AS 101 - First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the
reconciliations of equity and total comprehensive income in accordance with Previous GAAP to Ind AS are explained
below:

Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind-AS 101

A) Optional Exemptions availed

i) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangibles

As permitted by Ind As 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for
all the items of property, plant and equipment. The same election has been made in respect of intangible assets.

i) Investment in Subsidiary




The Company has elected to adopt the carrying value under previous GAAP as on the date of transition i.e. April 1,

2017 in its separate financial statements.

B) Mandatory Exemption

i) Estimates

Ind AS estimates as at 1st April, 2017 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with
the previous GAAP. The Company made estimates for the following items in accordance with the Ind AS at date of
transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

- Fair valuation of financial Instruments carried at FVTPL and/or FVOC|

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost

ii) De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition
provision of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions on or after the date of transition to Ind As. Accordingly, the
Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provision of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to
Ind AS.

iii) Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Campany has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the
date of transition. Measurement of the financial assets accounted at amortized cost has been done retrospectively

except where the same is impracticable.
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C) Reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

i) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 and 31 March, 2018

ASSETS
|Mon-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1,94,54,221 1,94,54,221 2,1241,079 21241079
(b) intangible Assets Under Development 42,000 | 42,000
(c) Financial Assets
(1) Investments 5,00,000 | 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000
(ii) Loans
(i) Other Financizl Assets 3,78,92,697 | 3,78,92.697 3,58,05,750 3,6805.750
(d) Deferrec Tax Assets (Net) (6,86,939) 15,05,200 818,261 |-
(e} Other Non-Current Assets ! " "
Currant Assets
(a) Investments )
(b) Inventories 3,25,007 3,29,001 441,754 441,754
I(c) Financiai Assets e
(i} Trade Receivables 40,92,84,352 (81,85687)] 40,10,98,665 29,89,27,575 29,99,27,575
| (i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,17,86421 4,17,86421 2,56,51,247 2,5651,247
|__(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above
| () Other Financial Assets T ! N
|(d) Current Tax Assets (Net} 952785|  [B6550)  B66235 12,07,655 (86,550) 11,21,105
|(e) Other Current Assets | 7745015 77145015  12,1399,226 12,1399,226
Total Assets 58,66,99,552 {€7,67,037)| 57,99,32,516 | 50,71,74,287 (85,550)| 50,7C,87,737
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES !
Equity
(2) Equity Share Capital £,75,00,000 6,75,00,000 6,75,00,000 6,75,00,000
(b) Other Equity 14,54,91,747 (22,53,563)] 14,32,38,184 11,55,57,333 7.25929 11,62,83,262
Liabilities
|Mon-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilites
(i) Borrowings 81909400 |  (2765916) 79143484 | 127,12,854 | (11,29201) 120583653
|(b) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 6,065,702 3,16,722 523424
|(c) Pravisions |
|(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 345631 345,631 10,45,115 1045115
cumnt uablm ...........................
(2) Financial Liabilities ; o -
(i) Current Borrowings | 17,09,06407 17,09,06407 |  149897,501 | 14,98,87,501
(i) Trade Payables 1 2,43,66435 24366435 | 16492970 164,92,970
(b) Deferrad Tax Liability (Net) | e { =% T 3 -
{c) Other Current Liabilities 7,80,31,156 | 7.80,31,156 342,53,542 34253542
(d) Provisions | 1,81,48,776 | (17,47,557)|  1,64,01,218 1,08,270 1,08,270
Total Equity and Liabilities | 58,66,99,552 (67,67,087)| 57.99,32,516 | 50,71,74,287 {86,550)| 50,70,87,737




ii) Reconciliation Statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under IGAAP to Ind AS

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2019 and 31 March, 2018

Particulars Profit & Loss For the period Profit & Loss For the period

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

IGAAP Effects of Ind AS IGAAP Effects of Ind AS

transition to Ind- transition to Ind-

AC AC
Revenue from Operations 76,001,978 76,001,978 499320525 439320525
Other Income 2049075 2049075 545,047 945,047
Total Income 78,20,61,053 782061053 |  50,02,65572 50,02,65,572
EXPENSES ';
Cost of Material Consumed 476,67 676 47667676 | 34723538 34353
Employee Benefits Expense 46416291 46416291 | 321711375 32T T 375
Finance Cost 51345513 {1636715) 49708898 | 38082393 {11,29.201) 36953192
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 31,79641 3179841 | 2421600 2421600
Other Experises * 17.26,16,536 B1,85,687 16,0802.223 73100616 7.31,00616
Total Expenses 138972371 65,48972 745521349 | 47,01,05522 (11,29.201)|  46,89,76,321
Profit/{loss) before exceptional items, extraordinary items 43088676 §5,48972 36539704 3,060,050 11,29,201 3,12,89.251
Exceptional ftems . (4.25405) 14,25,405)
Profit/{Loss) befare Tax [V-Vi) 43088676 36539704 20734645 308,63 846
Tax Expense: =
(1) Current Tax 11944 564 {1747557) 101.97,007 86,10,785 {86,549) B5,24,236
(2) Reversal of Provision of Income Tax 1129460 11,28460 50,000 50,000
(3) Deferred Tax 80,438 1747557 (17.41,685) (&032m) (316722} 86,549 r,
Total Tax Expense 131,54,262 95,84,782 8257514 | 86,60,785 |
Profit Loss) for the period (VII-VII) 29934414 26954922 214731 22203061

As per our report of even date attached

For Bhushan Khot & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 116888W

Bhushan Khot
Partner "'.
M No. 101858
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May,2019

N 7S
* | Firm Regn. No.

For and on behalf of the Board

Director

DIN - 01821002

For KHFM HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

)

Ravindra M Hegde

e —

Sujata R Hegde

Director

A

DIN - 01829352

nub Shrivastava

Company Secretary
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M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
[CIN - UT4930MH2006PLC159290)

NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment measured at Fair Value through Other Comp

In Equity Shares of Other Companies
Unquoted, Fully Poid up
Shares in Apna Sahzkan Bank 5,00,000 500,000 5,00,000
(20000 Shares of Rs 25/- each fully paid up)
Totwl 5,00,000 S.Em s.on,uou

(Unsecured, considersd good, unless stoted otherwise)

NSE Exchange Deposit 11,62,300
Security Deposits 367,30,337 3,68,05750 3,37,99.207
Total 3,78,92,697 3,68,05.750 3,37,95.207

é 1
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) in relation to
Deferred Tax Assets
Property. Plant & Equipment -
Pravision for Employee Benefits 1.08,432 32087
Allowance for Bad & Doubtful Debts 2277258
Sub-Total (A) 23,85,690 3,20,871 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Praperty, Plant & Equipment 795373 927,573 849816
Praovision far Employee Benefr - - 160,157
Interest / Processing Fees Ind As Adjustments 772058 31672200
MAT Credit Entitlement - - -
Issue expenses written off/misc exp
Sub-Total (B) 15,67,42% 12,44,295 10,089,973
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liability) (Net) (A-B) 818,261 (9,23.424) _{10,09,573)
Balance at the Opening of Reporting period {2.23,424) (10,09,873)
|Charge to Profit & Loss Account | |
[Ceferred Tax Assets |
Prowision for Employee Benefits 481028 | |
| Allowance for Bad & Doubthul Debts 2277258 .
Defferad Tax Liability
Property, Plant & Equipment 1,32,200 T775n (B6,378)
Provision for Employee Banafits (212,439} - -
|Interest / Processing Fees ind As Adjustments (4,55,334) (3,16,722}
MAT Cradit Entitiement = : -
Total Charged to Profit & Lass A/C 17,41,685 85,549 178
Charge to Other Comprehensive income
R of Defined Benefit Plans -
Balance at the Clasing of Reparting periad £,18,261 (3,23, 424 (10,09,973)
7 |inventories
Raw Materials
Work-in-progress
Finished Goods
|Traded Goods 1
|Stores & spares | 3,29,001 | 441754 | 2568772
[Yotal Inventories | 3,29,001 | 4,41,754 | 2568772
Inventories are carriad at lower of cast and net realisable valus.
3
- Unsecured
Considered Good 4092 84 352 299927575 26 8960427
Considered Doubtiu! - -
Lese- Allowance for Bad & Doubtiul Debts 8185687 i
Total 40,10,98,665 29,99.27,575 26,89,60,427

* Recelvables from Related Parties:- [Rs. Mil ) [(Pravious Year-Rs. Nil) { As on 1.4.2077 - Rs Nil |




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN - UT4930MH2006PLC159290)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12

CASH AND BANK BALANCES As as 315t March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018 As at 1st April , 2017
Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with Banks 1,51,87,575 B6,82,931 39,32,257
{b) Cash on hand 46,786,223 59,14,082 17,056,545
1,98,65,797 1.45,97,013 56,318 BD2
Bank Balances other than above carried at Amortised Cost *
{a) Deposit with original maturity of mare than 3 months bul less than 12 months - -
{b) Margin money deposit under hen 21920624 1,10,54,234 1,074,008
2,19.20,624 1,10,54,234 1,02,74,008
Total 4,17,86,421 2,56,51,247 1,59,12,810
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) As as 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018 As at 15t April, 2017
Advance Income Tax 866,235 11,271,105 3,04,870
{net of Provisions |
Total 866,235 11,21,105 3,04,870
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As as 315t March, 2019 As at 315t March, 2018 As at 1st April, 2017
{a) Advances to Statt 1,17.50,000 1,02.50,000
{Unsecured Considered Good)
(b) Loans & Advances 637,520 2,15,74,987 1.85.11,685
() Advances against site 68381102 B.649.98739 2.43,50.350
(d) Balance with Government Authenves
{e) Prepaid Expenses 2018295
() Geferred GST - - -
(g} Miscellaneous Expenses 61,08.008 10,75,500 -
Total 7,71,45015 12,13,99,226 5,31,12,035
* Misceallenous Expenses includes [PO Related Expenses
SHARE CAPITAL As as 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018 As at 15t April, 2017
(a) Authorised
1,20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 12,00,00,000 75,00.000 75,00,000
(Previous Year 7,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) .
Total 12,00,00,000 73,00,00000
(b) lssued, Subscribed and Paid Up
67,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each £,75,00,000 6,75,00,000 £7.50,000
(Previous Year 67,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each]
(As on 1.4.17 6,75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)
Total 6,75.00.000 6,75,00,000 57,50,000
(¢) Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares
Shares cutstanding at the beginning of the year 67,50,000 5,75.000 675,000
Shares issued during the year - 60,75.000 -
Shares baught back during the year = - s
Shares outstanding at the Closing of the year 67,50,000 67,50,000

675,000

{d} Terms and Rights attached to Equity Sharehold

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of #1510 ger share, Each halder of eguity share s entitled to one vote per equity share.The dividend 15
recommended by the Board of Directors and declared by the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting In the event of winding-up, the holders of equity shares shall be
entitled 1o receive remaining assets, if any in proportion ta the number of shares held at the time of commencement of winding-up, The share holders have all other rights as
available to the Equity shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the

Campany. as applicable

{¢) Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares

As as 31st March, 2019
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid held by- No. of shares
(i) Ravindra Malinga Hegde 5804785
{ii) Sujata Ravindra Hegde 9.45.000

As at 31st March, 2018
No. of shares
58,04,785

545,000

As at 1st April , 2017
No. of shares
5,80,500

94,500




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY B FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
{CIN - U74930MH2006PLC159290)

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 OTHER EQUITY
(a) Security Premium A/C
Opening Balance
add | issue of shares
less | Bonus issue
Closing balance

{b) Retained Earnings

1
Profit during the year transferred
Add: Other Comprehensive Incame

Less: Dividend Paid
Tax on Dwidend
Utilisation for Bonus lssue
i t i ial

Balance cansists of Surplus retained from earned profit after payment of dividend.

Total Reserve & Surplus (a)+(b)

14 Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrawings
1-Secured loans
Z-Unsecured loans
3-Interest & Processing Fees - Ind AS Adjustments
TOTAL

Secured Loans are secured against property, plant and Equipments and Fixed Deposits ( Refer Note 27 )

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for gratuity

16 Current Borrowings
Working capital
from banks & financial institutions-Secured
Apna Sahakar Bank Ltd
Deutsche Bank

From Related Parties
Ravindra Hegde
Sujata Hegde

As as 315t March, 2019 As at 315t March, 2018 As at 1st April, 2017
1,31,25,000 1.31,25,000

1,31,25,000

- - 1,31,25,000

11,62,83,262 14,17,05,.201 12,40,43,620
2,69,54 922 2,22.03.061 1.76.61,581

(4,76,25,000]
14.3535,1!4 11,62,83 262 14,17, I}Sﬂl
14,32,38,184 11,62,83,262 15,48‘30@01
554,317,149 7,21.34536 4,19,75,305
2,64,78,251 49578318 4.20,25.573

(27.65.916) (11,29.201)
‘!IM 43 484 12|D§ 83‘653 5.4_0,00,8??
As as 315t March, 2019 As at 315t March, 2018 As ot 1st April, 2017

345,631 1045115

Total 345631 10,45,115 5
As as 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018 As at 1st April, 2017
15.56,51,255 13.68.46,165 12,5220 949
1.08,77,395 13051 332 1,38,17,247
4277757
1,00,000

1 T.DIIUS!IIU? 14,98 97 501 13.90.3—8.125

Warking Capital Loans are secured against property, plant and Equipments and Fixed Depasis { Refer Note 27)

17 TRADE PAYABLES
Fingncial L iaoilities carried ot Amartised Cost
(2} Due 1o Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(b} Others
(i) Related Parties
(i) Otner Parties

There are no data available for overdue amounts to Micro, Small and Mediim Enterprises as at March 31,2019 for diclosures reg

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are applicable

18 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Advances fram customer
(b} Statutary Dues
(d} Current Maturity of long term debt
(e] Deposite -Premises
ify Others
{i] Related Parties
{li) Other Parties

19 PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
Provision for 1ax
Provision for Gratuity
Expenses

As as 315t March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018 As at 15t April , 2017
7.26,314

23640121 1.64.92970 50,13,254

Total 2,43.66435 1,64,92 970 50,13 254

wirements under Micro, Small and Medium

As as 315t March, 2019 As at 315t March, 2018 As at 15t April , 2017
2,36,79,398 3,3953 542 62,73 793
4,39,05.061

3,00,000 3.00000
385,000
97,61,697
Total 7,80,31,156 3,42,53,542 62,731,793
Asas 315t March, 2019 As at 315t March, 2018 As at 1st April, 2017
11,80,615
44,135 108,270
1,51,76,469
Total 16401219 108270 27 B,
G,




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN - U74930MH2006PLC159290)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20

21

22

23

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Contracted Price ( Services )
Less : Reduction towards variable consideration components

Total
The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of volume discounts, service level credits etc.

OTHER INCOME

{a) Rental Income

{b) Reimbursement of Interest & Issue Exp from LLPs

(c) Miscellaneous Income

(d) Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments

(e) Reversal of Allowance for Bad & Doubtful Debts

(f) Dividend

(g) Interest Income earned on Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
li) Interest on Bank Fixed Deposits
(ii) Interest on Security Deposit

(h) Investment carried at Fair Value through P&L

(i) Fair Value Gain on Mutual Funds
Total

COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Spares material at the beginning of the year
Add ; Purchases
Less : Spares Material at the end of the year

Total cost of material cosumed
Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus
(b) Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds
(c) Staff Welfare expenses
Total

'Gratuity and Pension
In accordance with Indian law, the Company operates a scheme of gratuity which is a defined benefit plan. The

All Amount in INR

For the year ended  For the year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
78,03,38,983 45,68,35461
3,27,005 -
78,00,11,978 45,68,35,461

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
9,15,000 3,75,000
49,901

10,84,174 5.70.047
20,49,075 9,45,047

For the yearended  For the year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
441,754 2568772
4,75,54,923 3,25,96,520
3,29,001 441,754
4,76,67,676 3,47,23,538
Forthe yearended  For the year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
38,08,64,815 26,37,40,265
8,12,59,518 57186778
20,38,578 8,50,332
46,41,62,911 32,17,77,375

gratuity plan provides for a lump sum

payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days’

salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five cantinuous years of service. The Gratui

is not funded.
Change in benefit obligations

Benefit obligations, beginning of the year

Service Cost

Interest Cost

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilitty

Benefit paid

Benefit obligations, end of the year

The assumptions used in accounting for the defined benefit plan are set out below:

Discount Rate
Rate of increase in compensation levels of covered employees

For the year ended
31st March, 2019
1153385
38116

88,811
(8,90,546)

3,89,766
For the year ended
31st March, 2019
7.70%

ty Plan of the Company

For the year ended
31st March, 2018
1411459
91607

1,08,682

(4,58,363)

11,53,385
For the year ended
31st March, 2018
7.70%




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN - U74930MH2006PLC159290)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
24 FINANCE COST

25

(a) Interest Expenses
(b) Bank charges ,Commission & Processing Fees
(c) Amortized Interest 8 Processing Fees expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

Direct Expenses

Site Expenses
Drycleaning Expenses
Labour Charges
Uniform Expenses
Indirect Expenses
Advertising expenses

‘Audit Fees

Computer & Printer Expenses
Donation

Director Remunaration

GST / Service Tax

Insurance

Membership & Subscriptions
Miscellaneous Expenses
Office Expenses

Postage & courier

Power & Fuel

Legal & Professional Charges
Printing & Stationery

Rent Including Lease Rentals
Repair & Maintenance

Bad Debts

Allowance for Bad & Doubtful Debts
Tender Fees

Telephone Charges
Transport Charges

Travelling and Conveyance
Works Contract tax

Payment to Auditor
As Auditor

(a) Audit Fee

(b) Other Services

Forthe yearended  For the year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
3,96,33,839 3,03,59,189
1,17,11,774 77,23.204
(16,36,715) (11,29,201)
Total 4,97,08,898 3,69,53,192
For the year ended  For the year ended

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

9,68,27,623 1,34,98,888
2,73.877
4,65,28,108 15,226
16,32,698 2,16,252
8,25.489 3,99,745
3,00,000 1,70,000
36,048 33,054
95,503 92,662
66,00,000 24,00,000
4,21,413 47,77,801
15,23,152 18,62,041
1,00,135
17,76,961 3,389
23,16,190 12,59,047
652,469 56,753
14,4866 517,966
12,39,160 15,29,998
6,61,933 234,929
9,44,700 1,30,030
22,14,229 10,45986
42,027
8185687 -
497378 1,27.236
182,209 84,954
49,07 555 875790
1532976 875,582
- 34,211
Total 18,08,02,223 3,06,15,552
3,00,000 1,70,000
Total 3,00,000 1,70,000




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN - UT4930MH2006PLC159290)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Effective Tax Rate

26 INCOME TAX For the year ended  For the year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
(a) Income Tax recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Tax Expenses 1,01,97,007 85,24,236
Tax of the Earlier Years 11,29,460 50,000
Deferred Tax Expenses (17.41,685) 86,549
Total Tax Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss 95,84,782 86,60,785
Deferred Tax related to Items recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 5
Income tax Charged to Statement of Other Comprehensive Income = =
.(b) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Profit Before Tax 3,65,39,704 3,08,63,846
Tax at India's stautory Income Tax rate 27.82 27.55
Tax on above 1,01,65,346 85,03,761
Tax of the Earlier Years =
Expense / Income not deductible for Tax Purpose
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
Donation 26,569 20,475
GST Late Fees 5,092 -
Current Tax Provision (A ) 1,01,97,007 85,24,236
Incremental Deferred Tax Liability on account of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,32,200 82,827
Incremental Tax Liability / (Assets) on account of Financial assets and Other Items 16,09,485 3,722
Deferred Tax Provision (B ) 17,41,685 86,549
Tax Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit 8 Loss (A + B) 1,19,38,692 86,10,785
32.67% 27.90%
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M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN - UT4930MH2006PLC159290)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 EARNING PER SHARE

29

30

[a) Net Profit for Basic & diluted EPS

(6] Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year
[c) Total Number of Shares outstanding at the end of the year

Earning Per Share - Basic (Rs.)

Earning per share - Diluted (Rs.)
Face value per share (Rs.)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS

ded,

() Claims ag the comp

-Service Tax

¥ not ack d as debt*

(b) Guarantees
(i) Bank Guarantees
(i) Surety Bond (Custom Authorities)

(b) Undrawn Commitment
{i) Towards Non Convertible Debentures

All Amount in INR

Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
2,69,54,922 2,22,03,061
67,50,000 6,75,000
67,50,000 67,50,000
3.99 32.89
3.99 3.29

10.00 10.00

Rs in Lacs

As as 31st March, 2019

625.79

97217

As at 31st March, 2018

625.79

602,19

* Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above as it is determinable

only on receipt of the judgements/ decisions pending with various forums / authorities

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent |iabilities where

applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a matenally adverse effect on its financial pesition.

THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT (MSMED) ACT, 2006

‘The information regarding Micro, Small and Medium enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been

identified on the basis of information available with the company:

(a) Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as on 31st March

(b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

{¢) the amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been pad but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

(e} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23
of this Act.

As as 31st March, 2019

As at 31st March, 2018

Ihere are no data available for overdue amounts to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at March 31,2019 for diclosures requirements under Micro, Small and Mediwm Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 are applicable

Information about major customers
The Company does not have any customers cantributing more than 10% to its revenues for the Financial Year 201718 & 2016-17




M/s KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN - U74930MH2006PLC159250)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ &

32

33

Related ady disclosure, as required by Indian Accounting Standard-24 is as below
(2) List of Related Parties
(i) Associate Concerns

(2) Palemer Enterprises { Prop Sujata Hegde)
(b) Kalpataru Pest Control { Prop Ravindra Hegde}

(i} Key Managarial Personne! Designation

(2) Ravindra Hegde Managing Director
(o) Sujata Hegde Director

{c) Rawi Nevatia Director

(d) Brahm Pzl Singh Director

(e) Saurav Hegde Director

(f) Abhibrat Shankar Kurmar Das Directar

[g) Naveen Carvallo CFO [ KMP}

{b) The following transactions were carried sut with related pzrties in the ordinary course of business:

Name of Party Type of a f Transaction ~ |Income / Expense/ 2018-19 2017-18
Palemer Enterprises ( Prop Sujata Heqde)  |Associate Dividend Paid Other Equi
| Concems Closing Balance
Unsecured Loans Liabili 1,00,000 -
Kalpataru Pest Control { Prop Ravindra Associate Interest Expenses Expense 2,30.841 g
Hegde) Concerns Closing Balance
Unsecured Loans Liabili 42.77,757 -
|Ravindra Hegde KMF Director Remuneration Experise 36,00,000 12,00,000
| Rent Paid Expense 840,000 =
Closing Balance
| Rent Payable Liahili 726314 =
Salary Payable Liabili 35,000 =
Sujata Hegde TKMP Director Remuneration |Expense 30,00,000 12,00,000
Closing Balance
Salary Payable | Liabiliny 3,50,000 =
Navesn Carvallo KM Salary |Expense 358,614 500,645
Closing Balance | |
b Salary Payable Liability 45,000 =
[ I Hl
I | | I

(<) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales and purchases / services rendered to and from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
There have been no guarantess provided or received for any related party receivables or payabiles,

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, were audited by predecessor auditar. We have relied on the audited
financial stement of previous year with respect to opening balance as at April 1, 2018. Further, the company has made necessary re-grouping of the
last yeer figure to make it comparable with the currant financial year figures and there is no impact of the same on financial statemant and same is not

Dividends declared by the Company are based on the profit availabie for distribution, Distribution of dividends out of general reserve and retainad
earnings is subject to Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend of ' Rs 0.50 per share in respect of the year ended applicable
dividend distribution tax, On May 30, 2013, the March 31, 2019 subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The proposal is
subject to the approval of shareholders st the Annyual General Meeting, and if approved, would result in a cash outflow of approximately * Rs. 58.46,557/-
.inclusive of corporate dividend tax of * 35 9,97.057/-

As per our Attached report of even date

For BHUSHAN KHOY & CcO For and on behalf of Board of
Chartered Accountants BF TY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED

[FRN: 116888 W)

*/ ?y@. Suajata Ra Hegds
Bhushan Khot Director
Partner DIN No. - 01829352
M No. 101858 .
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May, 2019



